GLADYS BENNETT GUY

Mrs. Guy's connection with William and Mary spans almost seventy
years in which she was a faculty daughter (her father, Henry Eastman
Bennett, was professor of education), a faculty wife (her husband,
William George Guy, was long a professor of chemistry), a college
staff member, and always an interested citizen. In this interview,
which was repeated in the winter of 1976 after the original interview
the previous summer was drowned out by an air conditioner, she describes
much of the spirit of the twentieth century in Williamsburg.

With her characteristic dry humor, Mrs. Guy's ®restriction" on
the use of her transcript is a request for "sympathy for my discovery
of the way I talk." She rewrote a couple of passages in the trans-

cript without doing violence to the original.
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Gladys Bemnett Guy

January 9, 1976 Willianshung, Va.
Williams: TYou have been gracious enough to let me come back to try to

recount some of the stories we had talked about when I was

here last summer. We‘ talked about Williamsburg in a much

earlier era, a very different era as you &scribed it) and

I think I asked you last time if Parke Rouse's description

in Cows on the Campus )-when he called Williamsburg "lotusburg,"

if that was accurate.

It was
Guy: Oh, definitely. It was very accurate, = a very pleasant place
A
to live, I must say. I was thinking before you came;g.bout‘ the

first time I saw Williamsburg. I was born in Florida; my parents

were Floridians,but my father'd been studying at the University

)
of Chicag0®m1d we'd been up there about a year and a half) and I*d
= At
never liked a big city. A‘ﬂy first sight of Williamsburg as-
X ssid
we looked out of the train window, "Oh,mother, there're trees
' A

to climb." And then we got off the trai% . . I don*t remenber

how we got up the street but in those days there were street

>
lights in Williamsburg. They had to be 1it by the lamplighter,

and I don't know whether it was gas or kerosene in the lamps,
[

but the city council had ruled that if it was a moonli t night,
S

there was no need for the lights. Well, we arrived on a night

SO
when the moon was due )' © " there were no lights. '’ having come
straight from Chicago, my mother said, "This is the darkest
place I've ever seen in my lifel" And it was.& }Zfourse , it's

not very light nouadays) but it was even darker then with no



semtoiemo@ of lights. There was pavement of\ Duke of
Gloucester Street and out Richmond Road -~ sidewalks,
not streets,paved,but sidewalks on Duke of Gloucester
Street on both sides. The sidewalk extended out Rich~-
mond Road as far as the Theta House )and that was the
end of tha%) - ‘wu lived a few doors down, right where

the (autmed wwd
the Baptist church is. From on we just toock our

o‘f‘r&#‘cﬂ —_— -
chances with the mud path, whstever the ~ mud or dust,

one or the otl}exi " that's what practically all the
streets were; There was only one other sidewalk in town)
and that went straight to the house of one of the important
councilmen and sboppeds I shall not say where it was or
who it was. So that was Williamsburg as I first knew it.

I have now the letter that Dr. Tyler wrote to my
father, offering him the position. It was written by hand.
It said how much he would pay )and he would be very glad for
him to do it,and that's just about all it said. When you
think about-all the people who come to be interviewed nowadays ——
and of course they never thought of anybody getting on a train
and going to Williamsburg to be interviewed;fnever crossed
anybody's mind. As a matter of fact, my father'd been offered
that postion before he went to Ghicag% ‘ : e’\l. he
didn't take it then because he wanted tq%eork on his degree[ his
doctorat@, but this time he decided to take it. . ' . I remember

there was a woman from Florida whomwe knew very well in Chicagos;

she was going to the university, too. She said when she heard



we were coming to Williamsburg © " "0h, going to
Virginiaf _That's the cream of the world." So that's the
L with whieh
athtude we came to Virginia: we were coming to "the

cream of the world.“\ fAnd it was. It was a lovely little
town. There were very interesting people here. I’ was
asked to write an article recently about the story of the
public library because I was closély associated with it

years ago _and I described - the people. I said =~
won 1 T T really

o a group ofﬂremarkable young women here. One
of them was Julia Tyler) who was the daughter of the presi~
dent of William and Mary;and there was Miss Ann Chapman who
came with her mother from Wisconsin, first to spend the winter )

and then they just stayed here all the timej Miss Jeanette

Kelly .who was a school friend of Julia Tyler's at Wellesley )

)
and she just came down and she stayedS ;lnd Mrs. George Cole-
man at the Tucker House. And then there were the faculty
women. My mother was one of the active young women of the
community. There were itwo very active women's organizations;
one was the Educational Associatio)r;)\which my mother quickly

became president. and there was a Civic Ieague. . - They were

) &

great rivals 9a.nd the great business of which did which.. -.jft
was the Civic League that started the public library. Mrs.
Coleman,as you perhaps have heard, opened the Tucker HOuse and
allowed a box of books that were sent from the Richmond Public
Library -- I don't know on what schedule «-- Fct in the Cole-

’5
man hall at the Tucker House** ! , , . Ye
4 - .



Ao C&Y rA
could go get them ~ - A " Garrett (Dilléard) and I used

Nt
to go in after school and pick up some books£_ :Zﬁat was

z

the start of the public library. But it was really Miss
Armm Chapman kept it going is is fresh in my mind
because we've been talking recently about some sort of
memorial for Miss Amn at - e library. I was
amazed to find that some of the most active people there
had never even heard of her. She died about fifteen years
ago, I guess, but all of her life was dedicated to the Wil=-
liamsburg Public Library > = I was one of a series of people
. \L‘)m M -
who worked there, opening A and giving out the books
for a minima/ salary, Put it wes Miss Ann who held it to-
gether and who ordered the books and did the reading and
attended to the finances. I mean, she was the library. So
I do hope they're going to do something for her >a.nd I'm
brining it into this just in case they don't so she will be
remembered. . ’ghe was the cutest little lady.— &he was
just about round)and sh€ looked like an apple. She had apple
cheeks; evenas a child, I thought of apples when I saw Miss

as

Ann) >;she got old . .| she became a wrinkled appl%« e

;she was darling but acerbic. She had a very sharp tongue, but
;ittyz I suppose lots of people didn't like her) . . et
but I was crazy about her. We were good
chunms.
Williams: Could you use the college library as well?

Guy: Oh, yes. Everybody has always up to now,even, but I think perhaps



they're a little stricter now than in the old days --

anybody'd wander in, no matter, where -~ Newport News,

I
anywhere, they wanted a book they'd come in and take it.
| I%Cf;’ et
« - . i T . - o /\ W
e

world isn't as casua.’!_4 )and they just can't frust the public

as they u?ed to, I remember I started last time, I think,
with thg cZI.I:.brary I seem to have libraries on my mind,

but I don't know whether anyone else has touched on it or

nog. - .7 I said I remembered -- I don't know

vwhether it was the first library because I certainly don't
know where Jazmes Blair's books were kept )and his was the

first library. It was burned,you know. But the first one
that I recall was in the Wren Buildingé; 'i';che interior of
that has been changed a little,but it was r;.ght where that
English classroom is, there on the corner towards Jamestown
RoadO T gly memories of it are very vague but very affectionate
because I/thought it was the most beautiful room. It was dark,
and the books went clear tc;z&le second-story ceiling )and either
there was a balcony  or rolling ladder like they used to have in
shoe stores -- you don't remember}. but I do -~ or maybe both.
But to a child it just looked as if it went-on up, up, up;and

Y

I thought it was beautiful. L I was
SUB IR W 3
still a small chn.ld when the other 11brary was built, the one

4
that now faces the Sunken Garden, which by the way, is badliy
named. It should have been called the college green )and how it

got to be called  Sunken Garden J}éon't know,but I would like



to state for posterity that Theodore Sullivan Cox of the

law department said years ago it should have been the college
green@; -~ Mel Jones and I:éetting out a-

. plcture booklet during the war when I was working

f or the college in the news release bureau -+ labelled a picture
"college green." That's as far as we ever goti‘ }fo one else
has ever done anything about that. It (?idn‘t catch on)but it's
certainly what it should have been, We then had the Courthouse
Green and the Palace Green and here was the'"Gollege Qreerb."and it
was perfect. Well, that'stm old library,and I think I've re-
marked that when I went over to watch the laying of the corner-
stone, I'd heard people talk of there being a Carnegie library
around and I remember wondering vaguely what a "Garnegie® was .
C L o \}Everybody knows
how it was enlarged, first to an "H" and then with a nattow
waist , and then the WaISt was expanded to be the main
part of the library) and the original little room was just an
entrance room. It was a beautiful room

that main room; it was L&%&(by bookcases; .’

-

We had receptions ,and we had
plays) and I think they probably even had dances there )though
most of the dances were held in the little old gym) vwhich was
over on the other side , on the Jamestown Road side of the Wren
Building }Whi;& we didn't call the Wren Building., We called i+
"the College}" the “Main Buildin%f o : . And incidentally,

Too
I would like to record for posteritypthat I don't like i’cff&being 7



called the Wren Building. I wrote the Board of Visitors

something t& that effect one time on one of my rampages, and I

5
got some very interssting letters in re‘burnsbut they didn't do
anything about it. My thesis is that you don't name a-building

for the architect, no matter how famous he is; it should have

P>
been called the Blair Building. . I made enough of an Impres-
sion }hathwhen Mr. Paschall met me at a party one night he
" Mes Guy

said, "fould you settle for the administration building being
called the Blair Building?" And I said, "I certainly would.
I would be delighted.” S0 we do now have a Blair Building)'but

we didn't for so many years. and it seemed to me outrageous. If

}
they were going to name it for somebody, it should have been
James Blair. Some people said he was a controversial character.

Well, how exciting it is to be a controversial character) and

people that are not must be pretty bla.'rviv.. I

7 : T

W g
T wouldn't include except that I think it indi-~

\
cates the sort of casual life we had’ 'fhe library wasn't open

on Sundays )bu't. every professor had a ke my father knew that

&)
I was trustworthy 5 and he let me take his key on Sunday afternoons
and go over there and have the whole place to myself. At that
time we lived on Richmond Road, right across from the library,
and I was addicted to it very early. I had many happy associa-

tions there at that library from a summer romance with one of

the librarians{ a summer studen‘a} ' -, ‘to working



there myself for a year or two. I think the new library

is superb. I'm ., . thrilled with it}but I‘l]#x)&ever know my
way a.roun%:} ¢ I remember somebody saying, "Can I help you?"
I said, "Yes. Tell me how to get out of here." However,
I'm very proud of that library;:f;"’f:']ﬁ think it's a beautiful

one, and we certainly needed it. Now the old one isn't even

)]
adequate for the law school . apparentlz})\ :;{J}hat they'll do
with it )I don't know )but I'm sure that/k“ . be plenty of
uses.
Williams: When you worked in the library, was that when Dr. Swem was :-here?
Guy: No, it was after that. The Admiral was president and
SN
- they sent out &S.O.S. v %ne of the

librarians -~ and Iﬁan‘t even remember his name at the moment

4

-~ called me one day and said he knew I'd worked inﬁhe public
library. I never had any library training }a.nd I wasn't at
all competent for the joh they offered me)but I took it
blithely and it lasted for a while. They didn't have a
reference 1ibrarian)and I wasn't even a librariari)' . if
anybody came up and asked me something I was terrified be-
cause I had spent a great many years going back and hfogc:i
around that library in the places that interested r:xev:éidn't

mean I knew anything about Poor:'s Index or whatever that busi-

P
ness administration thing is; I;never heard of it. That was
the sort of help we had in the library at that time ywhich was
completely :i.nadequarb%§ - ;.t was inadequate because in that big

ral

room{ in he center roo@was where they studied)and strangers would



come and,you know,qdemand things in loud voices, and the

]
but there really was no quiet place tostudy

students talked. it was very difficulté«f iy éhe stacks

were all right)

as there is now in this building. We needed insulation.

-+ I tried to keep people quiet. I'd go over and speak

to them and ask them not to talk put they'd forget about iy

ljarticularly though it was the visitors who'd come in and

za.lk in a loud voice.

Williams: 7You spoke about some of the leading people in town. Did you
know -~ I knew you knew some of them. How many did you know
of the "§even Eise}%sn‘ﬁ“

Guy: I used to crack for a while that my father was the ninth of the
";seven gisejEen‘" I thought that was pretty obvious. When it

-« k.

came back to me that I had said that my father was one of the s
nieven gis‘q%xslen" and somebody had disputed it, I _(%M ‘ )
He was much yuunger.(b\% knew almost all of them.
Dr. Wharton had died before I came, but I knew Dr. Garrett and
Dr. Bishop and Dr. Stubbs, Dr. Hall. I played with the
children of all of them. I don't know who the ::other two were
at the moment.
Williams: Dr. Tyler.
Guy: Oh, Dr. Tyler. Yes.
Williams: And Mr. Bird.

Guy: Well, Mr. Bird was younger and he wasn't really one of the "seven

)

e
yise?;en" because he came in later. He wasn't much older than
z 'z

my father )and his children were just exactly my age. I think he



10

took Mr. Wharton's place,and my father took Mr. -- well, I'm
not too positive. Anyway, he was here a short time k)and he
was a much younger man. He wasn't one of the "seven gis%en, n
at least I don't think. I wouldn't expect it. There/was/
some predecessor who must have . . . Yes, I knew Dr. Tyler, of
course, and the gresiden”b's lj}ouse was a place where neighborhood
children went in/and out: ;s we did our own houses because
Julia was living at home and Lizzie had just married and gone
off. I went to her wedding - - (one of my first memories)llizzie
Miles?who is still charming. By the way, at the dedication of
the pla@ue for my husband the fact was printed in the Charlottes~
villed paper.and Lizzie saw it and wrote me the sweetest note
: diffetert,

recalling the old days when the college was soﬂchange.d@' oo I
wrote back)and I told her that I think she would have been hap-
py to have been there because it was as}iarm and personal

. and happy an occasion, just as personal and affectionate as
anything that could have happened in the days when the college
'was as we knew it. I don't suppose you were there>but it was so
sweet and so friendly:

©
we were there. Nobody representdWilliam Barton Rogers but he

" Martha Barksdale's family was there, and

doesn't need representation. I was so glad, by the way, that

they kept that name because it's a very proud name )and I don't

think most people know much about who he was >but my husband
f@{: 'hns :?3
was a very great admirei" iand he wrote and spoke about William

Barton Rogers frequently ~- I mean gave talks on him publ:i:cly®
a o:% Dl &»ﬁ‘.ﬁ"
" Exe Was . : hero }and he wss always very proud to
z A
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e
occupy the chair which he had held. I know he would have
Aa il ; L\
been distressed . they changed the name; I would have
been. .. . . : o o ‘ .
— ’ Fal -

s What\\-in\@de‘ me bring that in was Iizzie Miles

WALWEN . that s . Little note and my Telling her .
that there is a great deal ‘.’teft of the old college;a .

e R ItTs ;\ow . a big col~

lege; .. = the faculty's big)and we don't know them,but if

you get the ol@timers together -~ which we had that day --

o>
it's the same sort of a warm, friendly i’eellng when we all

[
3

knew each other. \'Uﬁ certainly don't deplorethe college}( having

grown. I'm prouder of it than I ever wasy /fn fact, much
prouder than I ever was because I think it's a very fine
institution now. It's getting back to where it should have
been if it hadn't had all these vieissitudes, I think
our new president, Dr. Graves, and Mrs. Graves are a wonhe-
derful addition an§ :;‘:o:\.ng it just the way I like to see it
done. We've had our troubles, A googaifiows I've seen a lot of

then ja.nd I ‘haven't seen them all; I wasn't here for the Civil

war )’ohough I don't think I missed very much in between.

WM"\ s

- I4rs certainly had a harrowing history)but it's kept plodding

along)and now I really think we're an outstanding institution.

hav
I'm so proud of all the things that cgme to us.and at last, we

aaaw\
are begimning to have distinguished alumni,x We've had to

depend on our eighteenth-century ones for so long because we

had so few. There were, of course, outstanding alumni all
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2
b>
through the years because this was one of th;AVirgihié col~
leges " i-we did have)but it was a period when there weren't
many students coming here and there weren't many Virginians ot
southerners that had national recognition. But now we seem
to be back in it;mé ~. we now have lots and lots of alumni and
some of them are doing outstanding things )and I'm just so
pleased over that.
Williams: You made a rather interesting comment the first time I was
here-that the nineteenth century didn't end at William and
Mary in 1900. You said that World War I - - -

Guy: I - said that of William and Mary perhaps but I think that

)
was true of the whole world really, including Europe and the

United States)but I did say it here because it was when Dr.

Tyler rétired that the whole atmosphere changed. Dr. Tyler

was a very charming, absent-minded, scholarly gentleman, tall
and distinguished, aristocrate-looking. He was an aristocrat,
of course. He was casual enough?\% he wrote a letter to my
father offering him a position, wrote it by hand. Hse had ons

secretary s~ the room that's now the dining room at the presi-
P

-

yand I think it was Miss Estelle

Christian AUhe was his secretary but I'm not positive. There

dent's house was his office

weren't more than two or three secretaries on the campus.

But we could run in and out of that office and climb up in
Dr. Tyler's chair, just as if it were my father's study.| |
father, by the way, was Henry Eastman Bennett. He came in

1907 as professor of philosophy, psychology, and education ~~ all



three. 5o after that dedication of the SRR

féxg phllOSOphy professor "’”’ the ded:x.cat:.on!\ ]

new chem::.s try building which the phllosophy department

’/@his was the

sharegyaq I wrote him a note tellingpim what a " fine and

interesting presentation he had made of the building and

the background,. I told him I was particularly and doubly

interestéd because my father had come here as professor of

phj‘.losophy, psychology, and education. Eventually the

departments were d:.v:.ded>
\)gao‘f\a

Dr. Ferguson took psychology yand my father kept the education

- during the early years A “for
:j./ .

and Dr. Geiger took phllosophy) and

until he left William and Mar%)

most of the time he was here he was superintendent of schools )
and for that positionfin Williamsburg only{he was paid the
princely sum of $100 a year. It was considered something he
would ‘dokwith the little finger of his left hand while he was

writing books. He wrote several books while he was here, very

successful ones -~ textbooks on psychology and educatmon)
s e
While he was writing books and teaching his classes he wasé\sup-

posed to-.. o be superintendent of schools and he was. He had

4

the white school and the colored school’:- 2] can see the teachers ond %:\imuq;:mi £
mmzﬁivwe
CM% W .+ study

his old students@ And of course . the schools
Braationti
were terrible. Well, there wasn't much money here./\ ?very’oo&ly
;()Cfc-"_
was poor) ‘ and those who weren't were: " interested in

?nné:}.pals Were wsually

education }so the city fathers regularly voted down practically

any kind of an increase. Have I told you about my education in

Williamsburg?



L

Williams: No, you haven't.

Guy: It pretty well covers the waterfront. My brother started

4 3
#‘@um‘iﬁh\.

in the first grade; I was in the . grade at Matthew

Whaley, a little school back of where the palace standss
. Was ”
charming little school .-.,?t/\' a nineteenth-century building.
4 I3
I remember the ceilings were enormougyzS There were four rooms,

Jlike a Georgian house ).' )

and the first four grades were in there. When*'ydu.got o

the fifth grade you went over to the Nicholson School .which

p)
was right where My s, Dillard lives now. Do you know that?

Anyway it was next to the Peyton Randolph House, right

back of Chowning's> which was where the -~ Imn

)%JM” CM ‘ )
was The Inn had its own stables and horses . ~-- the
0

stables were right across from the school, an aromatic touch which
we were all used to , I guess. Our playground was the Courthouse
Green) which was a very fine plaﬁx;:xifg ) . That was
from the fifth through the ten't;h/\and that's all we had. Now
the Williamsburg Female Institute,of which you've heard, no
doubt . ..

Williams: Yes, Miss Wynne-Roberts went,too, didn't she?

~ When Twewt there
Guy: Yes )\“ oh, all of us went. /\I was the youngest and the smallest ==~

if you can believe it -~ child in that school. I was supposed
to be in the fifth grade ,)but I was the only one in the fifth

grade )and nobody wanted to fool with me 4S9 eventually I ended
up being promoted to the sixth grade without really very much
preparation,which worked fine in English and one or two other

}’66\2/» S
*c.hings3 ut it was veyy hard on my mathematics and -.:-
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that were really going to give me trouble the rest of my life.
So T studied at the Williamsburg Female Institute until the

middle of the tenth grade at which point -- now this is .. .Swvah &
fe}svn@i story thso
~ - - T don't know whether I should tell

it but it shows you the way thingé went. Cara Garrett and 1

ot Syl

got very annoyed about something that was going on there
Pl o TS ¢ | \'&;{
We were just bored with the whole thing )and . - -second semester

we walked out of that school )a.nd we said to each other, "Let's

never go back. Let's transfer to the high school." ~‘§.o

‘.

we walked straight to my houseO LMy father was in his study
7/

and we asked him)and he said, "Well: it's all right with me.

I've always felt a little guilty sending you to private school
when I was superintendent of public schools )'1 I was not M&‘d'e“"
what was in our mind.sj ké Jjust thought that it'd be fun to have

a little change,and it certainly was. So then we went b0t

Gawetté)md Dr. Garrett said, "Well, if Dr. Bennett thinks it's

all right.._;fe knows more about it than I do." A day or two
later off we went to the public school)a.nd we had a lovely time.
And that 's the reason I know something about the Nicholson

School. \4& don't remember that really as clearly as I remember
\aso\‘b st
the/\Matthew Whaley>but I remember that the big room that we

hOuSc_é

were in \had the ninth and the tath gradesw, ~the big stove

which heated the room was over in the corner where the ninth

grade sat but I sat near the Winc'tow%':;:c-?éj I've always been cold-

)

blooded. I had a green coat that year which I loved} and I never

took it Ofif‘i ;./Ehe principal)who was also .one of the teachers
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for the high school grades said to my father, who had
been his professor, "If I could just get that green coat
off of Gladys!" Mother passed the work on to me, but no-
body ever got that green coat off me.

When I hal been through the fifth grade at the Nichol-
son School (before transferring to the new Williamsburg
Femele Institute; I well remember that there were two
old-fashioned outhouses in the backyard, surrounded by
a high board fence. But I think that when, I returned
for the tenth and final grade that there was some sort
of better arrangement. WNot surprimingly.was the fact that
the perpetual topic for student debates al that time was:
"Does Williamsburg Need a New Public Schocl? The affire
mative always won--you can see why.

But a few years later, while I was in college, they
actually did build a new school-~and almost wrecked the
town. There was no argument about the need-~just the
location. Gradually the realization came that the only
possible site was at the end of the Palace Green, just in
fronﬁ of the little "Matty School," as it was usually called.
And with that decision the storm broke. Not a newspaper in
Virginia missed headlining; "The Desecration of the Palace

Green.!
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My father, who was superintendent of schools, was on
leave with the Y.M.C.A. in France, helping with the morale
of the troops who had to stay after the war ended--he
always was lucky! But my mother, who was usually the pres-
ident of any organization she was in, was in the thick of
the battle at home as a member of tlewoman's ctlub, which
was spearheading the movement.

Anyway, the new school was built; not much of the
green wWas used (it had always been the school playground),
and eventually the town accepted the new school and used
it. Then in only a few years the Restoration happened;
the‘sacred land was bought for enough to build a much

~defunct
finer school on the site of the now Williamsburg Female

A
Institute.
The Hestoration nas done a great deal of good in
this town. It was not nearly as drab and uninteresting
and dead a town as most propaganda makes it; it was a very
interesting toun. Any place that has a college, even a

small college, is going to be interesting. There were a

great many students and the townspeople-«there was
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no line between the townspeople and faculti%ﬁsocial lines, or
anything else. We just all belonged to the same crowd,and
that was true when the early Restoration people came. I
don't know whether this should be for the record or not)but
Hazel Ryan and I had a cocktail party this fall, about a
month ago, and somebody said afterwards, "You know, it was
such a nice group of people." This woman who was speaking
was from thé Restoration who said, "The parties we go to are
all Restoration people." And then the college people said the
same thing, = "the parties we go to0 seem te be acllege - but
here you had theé'both.“ And the reason I had them both is
because I've always known botéjx«; it never occurred to me I
was doing anything different)but apparently the lines)now that
each group hag gotten so big gre more sharply drawn. But we
all did things together in the old days. We didn't pay atten-
tioxii%hether Melinda Kendrew was Restoration and Christy Cox was
college. . I mean we just all played bridge together and went to
parties together and did other things togethr, went to Richmond
and had lunch at Miller and Rhoads together. We just didn't
know the difference 2nd the townspeople(/people connected with
neither . ?institutioﬂ) were also part of+ e
But of course, theylines are sharply drawn now ~-= they have to
be, .. I don't think it's' intentional; it's just that the

people yau know are the people you're thrown with. 4And so as

s

representative%gf a generation where that was not true, Hazel

and I just automatically invited the people we knew)and it turned
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a@@)am{éu o
out to be -~ ~the first party in some timg@that crossed

the 1ines)and everybody was delighted. It'd be nice if we
mc?&
A i

I hadn't realized it)but I'm sure looking at the town as it is
now that that is necessarily pretty much the case. But with
our generatiog)which we included€most of the guests were from
our generation, not alloof them but most of themj, that was
just the way we operated Before that, of course, it was
even more true because in my parents' generation it was a
small town. We knew everybody as w~4¢%>§::;:?;, black and
white. TYou asked how many of the prominent men I knew5 I
Jmew them all, played with their children. Dr. Goodwin's
children were my agezghis first familéh He was married twic%k)

;”,w e Evelyn Goodwin

and I. - went to the institute at the same tim%pm*‘ I was a 1lit~

tle younger than she was,and we were exactly the same height)so

)
we were the two little girls put she was about a year or more

a
older than I was and so fitteg into the sixth grade automaticallyj
but I had to be pushed.
Williams: You had talked when I was last here about some of things you did
. in those days. One of the things you mentioned were plays

that would come or would be put on at the college.

Guy: Yes, I'm glad you brought that uﬁl‘the Shakespeare plays. I
think that's something perhaps ho one else will bring out)and
I think it was a very interesting and important part of our

tradition. Here we were, a little college towq?and the college
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every year sponsored first the Beh Greet Shakespearéan Players
and then the Coburn Shakespearean Player%

They'd come every spring and play{ in my memory
it would be about three days; it may not have been three
days., It was perhaps two days or perhaps sometimes it was two
and sombimes threed S };hey*d give a comedy in the after-
noon and a tragedy at n:;.ght)but it went on so long that I
eventually went to the tragedies as well as the comedies.

They would use local people in Midsummers Night Dream, for

instance3 /'l'he fairies would be local children: ' they
played out-of-doors in Player's Dell) which is the little
slope that goes from Barrett Hall down -~ now there's a

high brick wall but the slope used to go right down and

)
out and along and up to -- well, anyway the brick wall
inbercepts the slope. The Coburn players succeeded the
Ben Greet players;and they bothyi‘ S Wﬁ:‘ out-of=-doors: if
possible. If it rained, of course,they had it over in
Cameron Hall at the Eastern State Hospital E =1 someone
else has probably told you how this community used that
Conmantn fead, betn alre

< sk
for all pla - condemned when I was a child yoo

it was used up until after World War IIBWhen the hospital

made the final move out to Dxmbar. - . SIS RRTaL

- ' g . R

St

MFWV‘%m _

- . . minimum of props. I remember they would
-

j{xst have two or three wooden benches) and they'd move them

have
around. They'd/{ a table or a chair or whatever they needed,
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¢ vl gerhaps they'd have a row of pine trees
(2

[P

cut for the backdrop.
o Not only the

local people went,but people came from all around, from all

the neighboring town%?tvi?it was quite the event of the spiing.

The result was that Williamsburg children were raised on

Shakespeare. I claimed I'd never seen anything else until I

went away to collegg}i‘a I guess that wasn't quite true, but

it was pretty close.

How did they light the area at night for the tragedies?

I couldn't tell you to save my life how they lighted it. May~

be they had electric lights strung around because the college

had electricity long before the town did. We thought they [fe glu=ysl

were wonderfu}fand I think they were because they were distin-

guished troupes. A few years ago when The Common Glory cast

began giving the Shakespearean plays I was out there one nightg)
and ¥ was watching the children. There were so many children
(§ou see, it was free \j)w, Tt : »;}gnd the
children were running up and down the aisles just the way we
used to dpj?: intermissiowa‘i I wrote Howard Scammon a note)
and I told him just sbout what I told yog%" — — How we grew

up with the Shakespearean plays and what a privilege it had
always been and how exciting it was for me to see another

" generation of Williamsburg children having the same

privilege because so many people ~ ~didn't have that background)



22

+ just didn't see any Shakespeare, - }t‘s so wonderful to find
out when you're young that Shakespea;'e is fun before you
ever learn it's a classic,. N o We dis~
covered the fun in The Merry Wives, of Windsor ;'a,nd all

B0 S Rygee
the other plays long before we, #nd we'd go around quoting:

fhere were quotes that we felt were so funny} and we would
Jjost use them around school the next day because all the
children had seen it. \ " Then the local people put on
plays, too ,”L“' the young faculty and the young ladies of the

town and some of the students Q:ﬁi ~-0 0 de =~ I remember

they did Lady Windemere's Fan and that sort of thing. And

that lasted right up until the generation ahead of me got

too old to do it. We never did, but we were in them some-
times, took parts in them. Miss Jeannette Kelly -- now she, you
remember ,was the college friend of Julia Tyler's who moved
down to Williamsburg) and she was a very intelligent person,
a very intellectual woman, . very talented(} she was the
great instigator of plays and pageants and thlngs of that
kind. She was very active in the community. \She and Miss
Elizabeth Coleman, with whom she lived, started the Camp~
fire Girl troop. Did you ever hear about that? Well,

they started the Campfire Gir];gand that was Jjust about the
right time for my generation(;wd' éit was very interesting§ ﬂe
did a lot of nice things\and we l;arned a lot of nice things.

We had our Indian costumes and our Indim headbands. We made

. our Indian beaded bands, I remember, and we had parties and
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hikes and campfires . and it was very

- ')
pleasant. It died a natural death. i~ Ehere‘swanother
thing that -~ it's funny, you know, how short memories are,
particularly in a transient place like this. I read the
other day that the Boy Scout movement in Williamsburg was
started -- oh, I don't know when, in the '30s, say -~ I'm
just guessing now when the modern troop was started because
I really don't lmow@;pu‘t that is ridiculous because the
'WOnr&n's Ulub when my ;other was president started a Boy Scout
troop, toe.. - . My brother was a scout}and so were all the
other little boys in town}and that was in 1915.

Every year there was %chool;ﬁfair. My father) being superin-
tendent of schools)was one of the organizers and promoters of
that‘\ and the Boy Scout trodps were a very impressive part of g

o pa.ctured\

B

It was taken out on the campus. I think the
fair was held probably on Cary Field}which of course = = was
then right back of the graveyard » Just about where Blow

Gymis@ . we had

wooden bleachers X ‘ ,\we‘d dress up in our best sults and gloves
and hats and go with our dates to the baseball games in the
spring and the football games in the fall. They were terrific
social occasiong, - DUIIR SR T We
dressed up for everything, of coursejb&‘#ha‘t‘s off my line.
What was I talking sbout?

Williams: Well, you had been talking about the various things there were
to do in towm.

There (s
Guy: Yes. It started with the school fair. - © a tremendous
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panoramic picture of that. TYou can pick out all the little
boys in their scout uniforms. That was when we were in high
schoo].) ’éo it was before 191l because it was 1914 that Caz,ig ’
and I graduated from the Williamsburg High School and then
went back the next year to the Williamsburg Institute with

scholarships which infuriated everybody except us. We

)
thought it was dellghtfu]@m’” the reason we got the scholar-~
ships was that the /{nst:_tute gave one every year to the
gl . .

¥ who had the highest record at Nicholson School.

Well, it hadn't been used the year before 4SO that left twoy,

<57 e didn't have the best grades in school but the people
they'd

Who' did didn't wemb to go to the /{nsmtute,\ ' had

enough education so off we trotted back to the }nstitute with

two scholarships ‘which gave us the fourth year of high school [asd ]

which allowed us to get into Randolph-Macong, otherwise I don't
= @uj N&U$>

know exactly how we would:have gotten in,’ At was

easier then than it is now.

Williams: You said to remind you in a moment to tell about the electricity.

Guy: Electricity and water and sewage. This is turning out to be a
recital of the prowess of my family )but this is really true, and
I'm delighted for the chance to tell it because people forget.
There was no water system in Williamsburg, no electricity when
we came here until a great many years afterward. Now we lived
across from. the college,and we got electricity from the collegeg,
---<..we had a bathroom and we had a rainwater tank and there were

a few other people in town who. did that but .

A
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the Eastern State Hospital had an electric system and
water as well as the college. Now the ladies of Williams~
burg were always having club meetings, as I said, and they
would give papers, and there were two perennial subjects.
One was: Should We Have a New 3chool? Yes; they'd argue
that. And the other one was: Should Williamsburg Have
Water? Well, my mother was washing dishes one day (and

I don't know why she was doing it because we always had
black hands for the dishes, but this was one day she was
in the kitchen washing dishes at our sink. We had a

sink and we had running water), and she was thinking
about the paper she had to write for the moman's club

on the question: Should Williamsburg Have Water? And
suddenly it hit her zll of a sudden: why shouldn't
‘Williamsburg have waber and stop talking about it?

So the result of her paper on the subject was thet

the woman's club got behind it, and they pushed the
unwilling city fathers.

My mother and some of the other members of the woman's
club went before the boards of the Eastern State Hospital
and the College of William and Mary to ask that they supply
water from their two artesian wells to the city of Williams-

burg. Both were, of course, state institutions,and the
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matter had to be determined by the state of Virginia. But
it was finally agreed upon: the city put in a sewer line,
and Williamsburg entered the twentieth century. This .
arrangement continued until after World War II, when the
two wells were no longer adequate and the city took over
the water supply that had been created for Camp Peary.
Camp Peary had at that time been abandoned and returned to
its former civilian inhabitants. A few years later, as
you know, the govermment took it back.

‘Where I said to remind me about eleétricity I was
really thinking about the water because that was a commun-
ity enterprise. The eleetricity I really don't know too
much about-~I suppose that V.E.P.C.0. came in and took
over, I don't know about that because when I went off
to Randolph-Macon I sort of lost track, and it wasn't
really until I came back as a bride that I was ever here
very much. I entered college in the fall of 1915, then
I taught one year in Ashland, worked in Richmond at the
Federal Reserve Bank for two years, and then went off to
Chicago. It wasn't until I came back with my new husband

I

on the faculty thagafeally picked up the amtinuity.

The women of Williamsburg had pushed and pushed for

a school and a water system, but it wasn't really until
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the Restoration came that we began to get some of the goodies.
They were the ones that insisted on the proper sewage dis-
posal and garbage collection. Up to that time the sewage
suds want into the creels ; ... you were lucky to have a
colored man who had pigs who'd come around and get your
garbage, and if you didst or the colored man forgot to

come you Jjust did the best you could. Most of our luxury
services came because of Colonial Williamsburg, and of

course they were the ones who saw that the--
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Q -

. ¢l

people used to say they put the telephone poles underground.
They couldn't put the poles underground; they put the wires
under\}and it certainly improved the looks of our town. There

were some charming old houses here, some of which are gone )but

most of which have been saved. When they first began to move
in, those were exciting days. I was here then )as We were

%
newly married>a.nd Dr. Goodwin was aheighbor of ours and good

had
friend. @Sﬁourse 3 I played with his children and then -

Lo ~ ' he and his second wife lived next door‘) so I
knew him very well. And he was so tense. He was an excitable
man anyway )a.nd he was particularly «keyed up at that tim%j LT

I don't know whether I told you this or not,but I think everybody's

\r'
S

recollection of the coming .of the Restoration/\g; different,. -
bound to be. The first time I ever heard of the Restoration, of

what it was going to be was when I was working at the public

)}

)which at that time was in a little green house, what
a ;

we cal:!ed:-w-»--‘/.\“Pemaiman house;' because after World War I a lot of

library

little houses were moved up to Williamsburg and set down some-
where on somebody!s lot and rented. Some of them are still here.
That one was put on some land that belonged to Miss Elizabeth
Coleman yand it was.right next door ito the Paradise House éj’wzwitﬁés
a little green house.and it had no wa’aer.5 I guess it had elec-
’crlc:\.ty)but no heat and no water == ”lb was a little shell and
it was icy c¢old in mntg;wé %{% 1i utle stove that T had to make
a fire in :f"'{f;lever have been very good at ig. In the summer-

time it was hot}but it could hold a lot of books, at least as



28

many as we had at that timeCD Miss Ann Chapman was, as I said,
the dedicated spirit of the nbraryi /(IL I did was to light the
fire, hand out the books, occasionally dust them, and keep the
records}and take in the fines )and sweep the floor and so forth.
One afternoon someone came into the library and said, '"Did you
hear that the Paradise House has been sold?" I said, "No. Who
bought it?" I was very interested because I always loved that

house and I used to look at it and think to myself, "My,we could

Y
probably buy that}but we never could afford to fix it up.® She
said, "I don't know. Somebody said the preacher." And I said,
"What preacher?" "I don't know." Then we began to hear that

“the preache;)\ bought another house and another house. Of course,
the excitement was terrii‘ic)and all this time nobody knew =--
you ‘know how that wentg fou've heard that story many times.
Nobody knew who was back of it.but then it finally came out,.

e

~ensy? j.ncidentelly,, Dr. Goodwin's secretary, Elizabeth Hayes,

wwas a great friend of ours and she used to say, "I like to

b
come to your house because you don't txry to pump as to who is
back of this business." By that time everybody knew = Dr,
Goodwin was doing it’) but nobody knew who was put::{ng up the
money. I must say there was a variety of speculation and .
suggestions and ideas. But swe didn't
punp her. Anyway. when it finally came out and everybody knew
that . Goodwin | was back of it -- I remember his coming

down to our house one night. He used to drop in occasionally,

we lived then in the Lee House) which is now the Moody House and

e
e
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is one of the guest houses for the Inn, right across from
Mrs. Ryland's. It was a charming old house.-m/cy cold in
winter \Pu‘t lovely in summer /»w- 1t was a genuine eighteenth-

century house - Dr. Goodwin -- Idcan see him now -- pacing
2

(B}u)b‘b‘ SV
up and down the living room floor, - -~ this hovse !
A How ceuld

#
and we jus;fsat there looking atrhi.m./‘ }be buy anythmg? Our
grocery bills were still a terrific problem,and as for the
monthly payment on the sofa why )that was just more than we

)

a
could cope with,so the thought of buying A houses - Of course,

)
he wanted us: to buy it . ~ ) - because he knew
he was going to buy it eventually at a good price,and he was
wishing we could get the profit. We didn't buy it)but those
were my early memories of the Restoration coming.
You had spoken last time I was here of some of the other
social events that there wergglike Phi Beta Kappa Day you
mentioned as being a big day. My fsthi=t Was o wembeg
Oh, it was. Everybody came, everybody in town. Theydidn't
have a dinner in those daysj' S e ‘ I N
. #t began with tﬁe public meeting and then went
on to adcollation,“ a big reception in the library and they
called it a collation. They had a collation, toe. It was a
formal reception and people ate standing up) they had
chicken salad and Smithfield ham and beaten Dbiscuits
and then slices of Neapolitan ice cream and cake)and it was

all served from the stacks. I started my sssociation with Phi

Beta Kappa as the daughter of one of the members by wearing my
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little pink silk dress(which went to all the parties)and

passing the cakes. I think the Negro waiters in their

e
white gloves and . -  jackets passed the collation,
PM aﬁ&?f, 1 aooi"\‘s\es and calles,

the plates )but I " .

One of the nice things about it was that after the party

was over, of course there was nothing in the world you could
do about keeping the ice cream)so we children were turned lgfse
in the freezers .f The ladies of the town -- everybody irgtom

who was anybody socially was invited }and they all looked forward

to i%} v + . they all wore the same dresses every year be=-
cause that's all they had in . = evening dresses,but they were

very nice dresses. My mother had a very lovely black lace )and
she would ring every possible change on that black lace. The

only one I remember was a big,red velvet rose )Which she wore

in the center there. I don't remember the other changes at the
moment)but they always managed to -- and nobody expected to see

anybody in a new dress. They'd have been the tal. of the town
he L vac.dg

if they'd been in a new dress.’ But @/ﬁg&e a beautiful setting

for the partyj’r-‘fiﬁ ~~~~~ f;mg after that

up.\ until quite recently;'really until the new Phi Beta Kappa

building was built . and the dimner the big thing.-.".o*
\”Q-Q, f\-@,@(ﬁ;\w\ G, M «@Q-efw - B /
Bk e e

eople went to the meeting

\"

in casual clothes and then Went on into the reception in the
PR R YT
Dodge Room there} I don‘t know whether you're familiar with
A SLE [y Akrprin A0
the old buildingg Well,the e © straight ahead of you
\ _
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as you walked in from the side entrance - - -

N - that faced the Sunken
That o

Gardenéwas the entrance to the social rooms }and then you went

fromthat to the auditorium and you went into the auditorium

from the side facing downtown, to the Capitol. -

2 -

- O - — s on Sy

.. T e The%e were really beautiful rooms. They were panelled,
and they esach had a big fireplace La.nd the ladies of the faculty ;

and particularly the wives of the Phi Beta Kappa members)would <
10 .,
be a committee to decorate it,and we'd 919 the mantles.d“])'o'the

mantles was quite the thing. "Will you'do”the mantle in the

Dodge Room?" "Oh, no, I couldn't." "Oh,yes you can.'_That

sort of thing. Ther;f bs ten of fifteen of us semetimes working

over there) ;fne doing the mantle in the Dodge Room; one in the

Apollo Room )and somebody else doing the tables and fixing various
arrangements. We didn't buy flowers) . We
used what we had, )and of course in the winter there wasn't muchom
we'd use berries and evergreens and things like that. (I rememn-

ber doing the mantle in the Dodge Room one time with the black
. pm-usbt :

berries that come on the /\ » the big lacy things, and red
ba ¢ berries put together,: & really it was quite -
unusual and caused quite a bit of commento BWe Just made do-with
what we had, . o ) ﬂiau}; we
used to work out some pretty interesting th:.ngs j,»then I re-

member. . : . I was doing the mantle in the Apollo
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Room one time } B

- - -

eame,
just after President Pomfret./kand I had just met Mrs.

Pomfret@ but she says that the first time she remembers me was
7

when she came over to watch us decorate for -~ this must have

been the freshman party in the fall because the freshman class

and all those big parties were held in those rooms )and in the

fall we really went to town because we had all the lovely fall

flowers in the fields and the gardenso‘:m I was arranging the

flowers on one of the mant.lessand I said to Miss Wynne-Roberts,

G~
"Pidgie, what do you think of that?" And =~ . Mrs. Pomfret
tells this story; f - ¢ . Pidgie moved back and

looked at itsand she said, "I think if you move that dahlia

just a 11ttle to the right." =~ -I moved it a little to the

right and Iéald, "How's that?® She said, "Perfect." And Mrs.

b
Pomfret thought that was 2 wonderful introduction to the wwwr ladies mﬁ

B e e ] Wil[l&msh%b,u‘t that's the way you did)and we
Z

had such funi' - - most of us belonged to the
garden club and had done a lot of flower arranging )and this was one of

our ‘big efforts. We also did the flowers for the Great Hall:a good
Wi

many times for things there and that/§ a beautiful room to

)
decorate .\%'Well » the years went on and we had a new Phi Beta
Kappa building )a.nd that Apollo ' Room never had any cham 5

e
really. Nobody was interested)énqghe people who went to the

reception were wearing suits and sweater%} 2 . nobody cared much

2

one way or the other but it was a big evert in the earlier years

and as I said the whole town was invited\}and most of them cameé‘ -
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By that time we had more than one évening dress,i”but some of the

2

older ladies still came in theirUPhi Beta Kappa dress .J) We had
o Pl 3%,

otk o parties t00. We had a faculty club and they used to
have dances over there and various parties and bridge parties.
One winter the faculty ciub had made its headquarter briefly
in Brafferton. This was to be a real effort at having a faculty
club at William and Mary. There's always been talk of having
one}and they've made several attempts. Thalt year we had ice -=-
you won't believe this =« but we had ice for about two months on
the streets. We had a big snowstorm and it stayed cold. They
cut off CGriffin Avenue for coasting)and you might just as well
because i you tried to go up it you were géing to coast.
The college ldke was frozen’)so we would take our provisions
on a sled. We skated all over it, the whole length -~ on the

five fingers <~% the long cove is quite long and we

= )
could skate clear to the end of that and clear up to the road.

~

{,:,z

I expect that today Ice House Cove is proba.bly skateable) but

I'm not interested. I never remember the whole pond being

frozen over any other t‘imeo : ' it was
lovely weather for skating );..hf -~ .- and we had some lovely
skating parties down there. (I'm getting off the track)but I'm

going to get back to it.) We had picnicsy yle'd take our
provisions across to Squirrel: Point on a sled, build a fire
over therjin the cabin over there. Well, that year the men on
the faculty had a bridge tournament going)and they'd play on

"
Saturday afternoons .

and then the wives would come in and we'd
A1 o

) J
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have afternoon tea and refreshments afier the game was won,

_ - By husband and Wilfred Lambert were @ortners,
A L[poidts to evp
and they won the first prize. It was something like tnis’\.q.,.
}ft‘. wasn't this onea ﬁt was one of those pewter cups. It
wasn't a Jefferson cup, it was the other kind that Max Reig
Dhembests ]
used to make. Annej\has one and I have one.

Williams: You had spoken about dances. Did you ever go to the finals
dances up in the courtyard, in the front courtyard? Not.the
ones that were in the Sunken Garden in the '3053 I mean back
in the Tyler era when they'd string the lanterns around the
yard.

Guy: They didn't have dances out-of-doors then. The dances were
in the old gym )but at commencement they'd string the Japanese
lanterns around the front. Now that was when I was a child;

I didn't go to those dances but we'd go over and watch them

for a\:ﬁhile é;wé?l just “bhoug),ht that the young ladies in their
beautiful long gowns with their trains caught up over their
wrists were the grandest things in the worldi When I was a
teenager( ‘before I went off to college ,uhen I was in high scho&l)
we went to some dances there, too, but after I was married and came back the
dances were usually in Blow Gym. Every Saturday night they'd
have a dance>and since nobody charged the faculty we could afford
to go. . . The faculty club had . dances and parties -- lots
of people had partiés in those beautiful rooms at Phi Beta

Kappa. That was the favorite place and the faculty club would
have their dances there s =" just for the faculty. They were

fun. There'd be some bridge tables set up in one room, and we'd
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dance in the other rooms. We had lots of fun in those day:(sigw: ;
I think I told you before that though we didn't have much money
N we had so many wonderful pe«\?;cfs tes, v, .. Eii ‘.1 was a
great tennis player and he could play tennis froses.
There were always tennis courts availa-

ble. There were two pools that we could go 1nto » one 1n Blow UtQ éz

Gym and the little Jefferson pool.-

£

We usually

had complimentary athletic tickets to the games. They had to be
complimentary because as I said there was nothing left over to

spend for entertainment. We didn't need it because e had so

the
much freg . We had concert series and the plays. - ourse we

z

b

paid for t%%se bm they were very moderate( o we had top~notech

concerts. \ During the war when the men all left President

Pomfret called ne anqésked me if I would be interested in taking

over the news release bureau )and I would. Mel Jones was the

advisor}but‘ I did the work..-I mean I was the one thalt wrote the

articles and so forth )and I had a secretary and a beautiful

T
desk and- . chairs/l" "' red leather Oh, it was
mar'wa-:l.ozzxs})~ " 1% was that room just to the left as you go into

the Wren Building from the <fij;»'ont, you know where the hostesses
stay -~ I think {5 sort of headquarters for them. It was then
because our office had charge of the hostesses[ the girl* stu~
dents) who did the guiding through the Wren Building, We kept
the time for them and I gave them information. My mother was

living with us at the time ~~ my father had died ~~ and she was
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very thrilled at my being over there, particularly because that
was the exact spot where my father's classroom had been before

e
the Restoration when they had changed the lay out somewhat. But

)
that-exact spot was my father's classroom and that was my office.

I did that for two or three years untili the war was over, at

which time I was thoroughly tired of it.but it was lots of fun.

, )
i.\»\w..“h
S ieag @hht made me think about that was the coneert series. You

-
see, I did the publicity for the concert series)‘-wfg’ I was com-

pletely ignorant of music -- always have and always will be ==

so what I did was mostly to rewrite and adjust the publicity they
sent out. I realized what top-notch people we were getting
because they still are some of the top=-noteh musicians in the

worlda«:mﬁ%f Eve've never had the quality since that we had during
: z . '

those early years. 3;,

.
~
- - s
Williams: One more thing you did that we should get down on record is about
when you and I think it was Mrs. Dillard were the children that
unveiled the priori‘b&@pla@ue. Am I right on that?
Guy: Oh, yes. I don't remember too much about it because that was ...

really in the early years. There were three faculty daughters

-- and only three ~- Emily Hall, carg Garrett, and Gladys Bennett.
}
I guess they didn't know what to do with ™£ ;fq““‘ e 3) so they

. \
let three of us do it.
pisgue -
- the priorities » " "»was on the inside:}a; L the (wheplop

hall at that time . f:(as I said, the whole interior layout
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has been changed. It's been changed so many times)but it's

certainly changed since I remember it as a chilg’) fm terri-

bly prouc of that plague end when I take visitors around --
gv{‘cﬁeﬁ ) ‘

you know, the . ~ don't call people’s attention to it. I

make all my guests see it. I say, "Look at this. This is

important. 7You can look at the rest of it )bu't you read this

)
}frot because I helped to unveil it}but because it's so terribly
an
important to tell.you what - , -+ important
: =4

college we were and are getting now to be again.})

Would you like to hear about the William and Mary Wictory?
When I was working there &\}ting the war at the news release
bureau I got word ‘‘e~ I don't know how I found out about ite —
fgeems to mé I saw it in the paper. One of the shipyards was
building the victory ships in Baltimoreigés nawing their ships
for coloriihal colleges. Well, someone down here -~ and certainly
I had nothing to do with it; I read about it in the paper: =--
said if you're naming them for colonial colleges how about the
College of William and Mary? And so they said, "Well, yes, we'll
name one for the Gollége of William and Mary." Thatts all I
needed -~ a ship going to be named for William and Mary. So I
talked to my fpﬁ':ynd Pidgis, Miss Marguerite Wynne-Roberts, who
was then assistant dean of women, social director of the college,
and just as crazy about ships and William and Mary as I was. Her
eyes 1it ups 3H® was so thrilled. We were both excited. So we
went to Dr. Pomfret,and we went to Charlie Duke )who was the

bursar(and:of course, all of us were intimate friends. That was-the



38

nice part: }Je all knew each other so well) /‘an asked what
they thought zbout it, if we could do something about it. And
so the upshot was that I wrote to the shipyard and asked if
it'd be possible for one of our girls to christen the ship) and
they said they'd be delighted. So we asked newly e}.ected_presi—
dent‘of{,,t‘fle student body to be the sponsor ,and the one who was
just going out of office to be the matron of honoz(;) Gl ye got
all pepped up over it. We were invited to come up to Baltimore
Llsu nah.nﬁﬂ

for thez\ as many of us as wanted to,.I guess. It's all so
far in the background noz}but anyway we were invited to come up

for the christening and of course somebody had to chperone these

)

)a.nd who better tham Mrs. Guy. Pidgie was crazy to go. At

the last minute something came up here)and she had to work. Her

girls

conscience spoiled more things for her in her li:f.‘e)

S0
% she

didn't go, put Dean Landrum went. You know Dean Landrum.- #ou've

hearé“about her., She was a most charming little lady, Jjust sbout
S . o she
A

wanted to keep the formality of the college and she wanted to

as Tdao. @M
keep the dignity/\e.a?ﬁi she believed in that, She weni[;\, several

50 high) and she always wore long dresses °

people went. And we had a wonderful time. I don't know how the

alumni found out about it. Oh, - : Charlie McCurdy was in

A
the war )‘ Alyse Tyler was running the alumni office 2 and I

guess she wrote the Baltimore alumni. They had a luncheon)to

which we Went)and then we were all invited to dinner after

the launching at some clubég,nd you know, we weren't eating

o
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very well down here in those days, and every place we went
where our ship was we were just given the most magnificent
food~- Steaks that we hadn't seen in years were produced
for us.

The launching went off beautifully. At the last min-
ute one of our alumni (Mrs. Granville Pullen) produced a
handsome young nephew who had gone to William and Mary
and would be coming back (he was a naval officer), and he
acted as escort for the sponsor. It was really quite a
business. We had a wonderful time. And we kept up with
William -and Mary Vidory. She came down to the Portsmouth
shipyard to be fitted out after she was launched and
finished up there. ngiet the captain; he invited us down
to Poctsmouth to see our ship, and they gave us a steak
dinner. We invited the captain and some of the officers
up here, and oh, we had a wonderful time! The shipyard
was highly amused, I think. They said no college ever
had made that much fuss over it, but they enqued it.
They got right into the spirit of it because none of the
other colleges had taken any part at all, and we thought
that was missing a terrific change. It really was lots of
fun . The last thing was that when they made their last

trip back from Europe loaded with soldiers, I don't know
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where they landed, but the captain sent us an enormous
banner(’ I suppose it was as long as - this house
house) with "William and Mary Victoéry, Welcome Home."
I didn't know exactly what to do with it, but I was still
imbued with the thrill of the William and Mary Victory,
and we put it out on the back of the Wren Building on the
patio there for awhile. “Fhen the janitor, Arthur Hill,
said to me, "Mrs. Guy, where we going to put that?" And
I said, "I don't know. Just roll it up and put it away
somewhere." At that time Arthur Hill was perfectly natural;
he hadn't acquired his affectations, but later he got so
he'd pull his forelock when he'd meet anybody. I don't know
where he learned that that was a gesture of respect, but he
did. And then "Ted" Fowler said to me one day (that was
Jimmy's wife), "Does he call you 'doctor'?" I said, "Heavens,
no.* She said, "He calls me 'Dr. Powler.'" But his fore-
lock was what tickled me funny. Every time I'd see him
he'd say, "Mrs. Guy, what are we goin!'to do with that banner?n
And I'd say, "I haven't the ﬁgntest idea--and don't ask me."
Williams: You don't know what happened to it?
Guy e No, I expect it's still up in the attic of the Wren Building,
but I have no idea, and I'm not going to try and find out. That
was the William and Mary Viectory. One time Charlie Duke, who

was the bursar, and I were talking sbout the money. He said,
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"It's nothing but a2 damn rowboab, and it's cost us more
money already. . . .¥ And I said, "It has not cost us
much money, and it's a whole lot more than damn rowboab;
it's a big ship.® He'd never seen it, but his wife had
gone down when we went down to have dinner on board. We
thought it was a magnificent ship. I don't know what
happened to her; I think she's in mothballs somewhere,
maybe over in tke James River fleet, but I don't know.
So that's the William and Mary Victory, and I'll bet no

one else has thought to tell you sbout.it.



